
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
 

AGENDA 
 

November 25, 2014 
 

  



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
MINUTES OCTOBER 28, 2014 ................................................................................................................................. 3 

AGENDA NOVEMBER 25, 2014 ............................................................................................................................... 8 

CASE NO 1  916 5TH AVE SE UNIT B ......................................................................................................................... 9 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 10 
LOCATION MAP  916 5TH AVE SE .............................................................................................................................. 11 

CASE NO 2  2908 ASHVILLE DR SW ....................................................................................................................... 12 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 13 
LOCATION MAP  2903 ASHVILLE DR SW .................................................................................................................. 14 

CASE NO 3  403 7TH AVE NW ................................................................................................................................. 15 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 16 
LOCATION MAP  403 7TH AVE NW ............................................................................................................................ 17 

CASE NO 4  812 BRADLEY ST SW .......................................................................................................................... 18 

SURVEY.................................................................................................................................................................... 19 
LOCATION MAP  812 BRADLEY ST SW ...................................................................................................................... 20 

CASE NO 5  3504 DANVILLE RD SW ...................................................................................................................... 21 

METES AND BOUNDS .............................................................................................................................................. 22 
LOCATION MAP  3504 DANVILLE RD SW ................................................................................................................. 23 

CASE NO 6  431 JOHNSTON ST SE ......................................................................................................................... 24 

LAYOUT ................................................................................................................................................................... 25 
SURVEY.................................................................................................................................................................... 26 
LOCATION MAP  431 JOHNSTON ST SE .................................................................................................................... 27 

 
  

2 
 



 
 

MINUTES OCTOBER 28, 2014 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Vice-Chairman Larry Waye, Messrs., Mr. Eddie Pike, and Ms. 
Frances Tate  

 
SUPERNUMERARIES:   Mr. Charles Taylor and Ms. Sally Jo Green 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:   Mr. Wally Terry, Director 
        …..and Custodian of Records 
        Mr. Herman Marks, City Attorney 
        Mr. Chip Alexander, Asst. City Attorney 
        Mrs. Karen Smith, Planner 
        Mr. Bob Sims, Building Inspector 
        Ms. Judy Bosworth, Recorder 
 
Vice-Chairman Larry Waye called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at 
City Hall.  Mr. Bob Sims called the roll.   
 
Ms. Frances Tate moved to approve the minutes of the September Special Called meeting as 
printed.  Ms. Sally Jo Green seconded the motion.  On a voice vote, the motion carried. 
 
Mr. Eddie Pike moved to approve the minutes of the regular September meeting as printed.  Ms. 
Frances Tate seconded the motion.  On a voice vote, the motion carried. 
The Board considered the following applications and appeals. 
 
CASE NO 1  
 
Application and appeal of Roger Ferrell for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for recreational shooting targets at 2520 Circle Dr SE, 
property located in a R-1 Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Roger Ferrell presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Ferrell stated he would like an 
administrative office to manufacture and sell targets and various components that would be 
manufactured in Birmingham.  Mr. Ferrell also stated he would primarily wholesale the products 
but some would be sold on-line as well as in different venues.  Mr. Ferrell additionally stated 
there would be no product stored at his home, no employees, and no signage. 
 
Both Mr. Sims of the Building Department and Mrs. Smith of the Planning Department stated 
they would recommend approval. 
 
Mr. Eddie Pike moved to approve this home occupation request as submitted.  Mr. Charles 
Taylor seconded the motion, on a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 

3 
 



CASE NO 2 
 
Application and appeal of Amy Shelton for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office and to bake and decorate cakes in accordance with 
the Alabama Cottage Food Law at 1308 Northmeade St SW, property located in a R-2 Single-
Family Zoning District. 
 
Ms. Amy Shelton presented this case to the Board.  Ms. Shelton stated she would like an 
administrative office to bake cakes under the Alabama Cottage Food Law.  Ms. Shelton 
additionally stated she would deliver the cakes to the customers. Further Ms. Shelton stated she 
would have no employees and no signage. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department would agree with the Building Department. 
 
Ms. Sally Jo Green moved to approve this home occupation request as submitted.  Ms. Frances 
Tate seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 3 
 
Application and appeal of Jennifer Ledbetter for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for an on-line embroidery business at 2938 Legacy Dr 
SW, property located in a R-2 Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
Ms. Jennifer Ledbetter presented this case to the Board.  Ms. Ledbetter stated she would like an 
administrative office for an on-line embroidery business.  Ms. Ledbetter also stated she would 
have no employees and no customer coming to her home. 
 
Both Mr. Sims of the Building Department and Mrs. Smith of the Planning Department stated 
they would recommend approval. 
 
Mr. Eddie Pike moved to approve this home occupation request as submitted.  Ms. Frances Tate 
Seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 4 
 
Application and appeal of Carlos DeJesus for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for a wheelchair transportation business at 1110 8th 
Ave SE, property located in a R-3 Single-Family Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Carlos DeJesus presented this case to the Board.  Mr. DeJesus stated he would like an 
administrative office for a wheelchair transportation business. 

4 
 



 
Vice-Chairman Larry Waye asked if the owner was aware of his request.  Mr. DeJesus stated the 
owner was aware of this request  .Mr. DeJesus additionally stated he would be using one van for 
his business which would have no advertising on it.  He also stated there would be no employees. 
 
Vice-Chairman Larry Waye stated if the business grew and more vans were needed as well as 
employees then Mr. DeJesus would need to rent a commercial space since a fleet of vehicles 
parked at the home would not be allowed; neither could employees report to his home for work.  
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval with the explanation Vice-
Chairman Larry Waye made.   
 
Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mr. Charles Taylor moved to approve this home occupation request as submitted.  Ms. Sally Jo 
Green seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 5 
 
Application and appeal of Ashley S. Mayers for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for an on-line retail store in order to retail hair 
extensions and jewelry at 1615 Marion St SW, property located in a R-2 Single-Family Zoning 
District. 
 
Ms. Ashley S. Mayers presented this request to the Board.  Ms. Mayers stated she would like an 
administrative office to sell hair extensions and jewelry on-line.  Ms. Mayers also stated there 
would be no customers coming to her home. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mrs. Smith asked Ms. Mayers if the clients would want her to apply the extensions.  Ms. Mayers 
stated “no”.  Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mr. Eddie Pike moved to approve this home occupation as submitted.  Ms. Frances Tate 
seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 6 
 
Application and appeal of Jasmine Burnett for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have a Day Care Home for six children or less from 6:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. and a 
Group Day Care Home for seven to twelve children from 2:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. at 902 6th Ave 
SW, property located in a R-2 Single-Family Zoning District. 
 

5 
 



Ms. Jasmine Burnett presented this case to the Board.  Ms. Burnett stated she would like a Home 
Day Care and a Group Day Care Home to be able to keep up to six children from 6:00 a.m. to 
7:00 p.m. and up to twelve children from 2:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
 
City Attorney, Herman Marks asked if she had children of her own to care for in addition to the 
daycare children.  Ms. Burnett stated she had two children that were school age.  Ms. Burnett 
additionally stated she would have an employee to help with the Day Care duties. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department would recommend approval. 
 
Ms. Sally Jo Green moved to approve this home occupation as submitted.  Mr. Eddie Pike 
seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 7 
 
Application and appeal of Clifton Foster for both a 5 foot rear-yard and a 5 foot side-yard 
setback variance to Section 25-10 of the Zoning Ordinance in order to finish constructing an out 
building at 3201 Leafwood Place SW, property located in a R-2 Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Clifton Foster presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Foster stated he would like setback 
variances on both the rear and side of his property to finish constructing a shed. 
 
Mr. Eddie Pike asked if the shed was already constructed.  Mr. Foster stated it was partially 
constructed. 
 
Vice-Chairman Larry Waye asked Mr. Foster if he had a survey to present to the Board.  Mr. 
Foster stated “no”.  Vice-Chairman Larry Waye then stated there was plenty of room on the 
other side of the property to construct the shed so why could he not construct it there?  Mr. 
Foster stated it flooded on the other side of the property.   
 
Mr. Charles Taylor stated the building could be built up in a case where flooding is an issue. 
 
Mr. Joey Johnson of 1120 Way Thru the Woods stated he lived directly behind Mr. Foster. Mr. 
Johnson also stated he did not mind what Mr. Foster constructed as long as he met the setbacks; 
however, that was not the case because the structure was right next to the fence. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the setbacks needed to be maintained and there was plenty of room in the rear-
yard to construct the structure.  Therefore; the Building Department would recommend 
Disapproval. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department would recommend Disapproval. 
 
Mr. Eddie Pike asked the Building Department is it the fact that the structure had a roof that 
made it fall under the Zoning guidelines. 

6 
 



 
Mr. Bob Sims stated if the structure was just a deck without a roof the zoning would not come 
into play, but since the structure will have a roof that makes it fall under the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Eddie Pike moved to approve this variance request as submitted.  Ms. Frances Tate seconded 
the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion failed with five voting against and zero voting in 
favor. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 4:25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   __________________________________ 
   Vice-Chairman, Larry Waye 

 
  

7 
 



AGENDA NOVEMBER 25, 2014 
 
CASE NO 1 
 
Application of Phyllis Smith for an appeal of an Administrative Decision from Section 25-11.2 
of the Zoning Ordinance to have an administrative office for a residential cleaning business at 
916 5th Ave SE, Unit B, property located in a RD Redevelopment Zoning District. 
 
CASE NO 2 
 
Application and appeal of Marlon Birdsong for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office to sell dresses on-line at 2903 Ashville Dr SW, 
property located in a R-2 Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
CASE NO 3 
 
Application and appeal of Annie Balentine for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for a residential cleaning business at 403 7th Ave NW, 
property located in a R-4 Multi-Family Zoning District. 
 
CASE NO 4 
 
Application and appeal of Chris Armor for a 7.5 foot rear-yard setback variance to Section 25-11 
of the Zoning Ordinance in order to be allowed to keep the structure at 812 Bradley St SW, 
property located in a B-1 Business Zoning District. 
 
CASE NO 5 
 
Application and appeal of Ken Lett for a use permitted on appeal to Section 25-12.1 of the 
Zoning Ordinance to be able to manufacture popcorn at 3504 Danville Rd SW, property located 
in a AG-2 Zoning District. 
 
CASE NO 6 
Application and appeal of Dr. Paul Bishop for a variance to Section 25-16(6) of the Zoning 
Ordinance to allow double loaded parking spaces for employees only to be included in the 
parking calculations at 431 Johnston St SE, property located in a B-2 General Business Zoning 
District. 

 
  

8 
 



 
 
 

CASE NO 1  916 5TH AVE SE UNIT B 
 

9 
 



 
 
 
 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE 
 
 

10 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP  916 5TH AVE SE 
 

11 
 



 
 
 

CASE NO 2  2908 ASHVILLE DR SW 

12 
 



 
 
 
 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

13 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP  2903 ASHVILLE DR SW 

14 
 



 
 
 
 
 

CASE NO 3  403 7TH AVE NW 
 

15 
 



 
 
 
 

 
QUESTIONNAIRE 

16 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP  403 7TH AVE NW 

17 
 



 
 
 
 

CASE NO 4  812 BRADLEY ST SW 
 

18 
 



 
 
 
 
 

SURVEY 
 

19 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP  812 BRADLEY ST SW 

20 
 



 
 
 

CASE NO 5  3504 DANVILLE RD SW 
 

21 
 



 
 
 
 
 

METES AND BOUNDS 

22 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP  3504 DANVILLE RD SW 

23 
 



 
 
 
 

CASE NO 6  431 JOHNSTON ST SE 
 

24 
 



 
 

LAYOUT 
 
 

25 
 



 
 
 
 

SURVEY 
 

26 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP  431 JOHNSTON ST SE 

27 
 


	AGENDA
	Minutes October 28, 2014
	Agenda November 25, 2014
	case no 1  916 5th Ave SE Unit B
	QUESTIONNAIRE
	LOCATION MAP  916 5TH AVE SE

	case no 2  2908 ashville dr sw
	QUESTIONNAIRE
	LOCATION MAP  2903 ASHVILLE DR SW

	CASE NO 3  403 7TH aVE NW
	QUESTIONNAIRE
	LOCATION MAP  403 7TH AVE NW

	CASE NO 4  812 BRADLEY ST SW
	SURVEY
	LOCATION MAP  812 BRADLEY ST SW

	CASE NO 5  3504 DANVILLE RD SW
	METES AND BOUNDS
	LOCATION MAP  3504 DANVILLE RD SW

	CASE NO 6  431 JOHNSTON ST SE
	LAYOUT
	SURVEY
	LOCATION MAP  431 JOHNSTON ST SE


